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P R OCEETDTI NG S

MR. WATKINS:

My name 1s Tim Watkins.
I am an accident i1nvestigator
with the Mine Safety & Health
Administration or MSHA, an
agency of the United States
Department of Labor. With me
today 1s Jennifer Casey, from
the Solicitor®"s Office and
Sherrie Hayashi from the
Commission of Labor. We will
be conducting the questioning
today.

I, together with other
government i1nvestigators and
specialists have been assigned
to 1nvestigate the conditions,
events and circumstances
surrounding the fatalities
that occurred at the Crandall
Canyon Mine 1n Utah i1n August
of 2007. The 1nvestigation 1s

being conducted by MSHA, under

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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Section 103(a) of the Federal
Mine Safety and Health Act and
the Utah Commission of Labor.
We appreciate your assistance
in this investigation.

After the i1nvestigation
is complete, MSHA will issue a
public report detailing the
nature and causes of the
fatalities 1n the hope that
greater awareness of the cause
of the accidents can reduce
their occurrence i1n the
future. Information obtained
through these witness
interviews 1s frequently
included In these reports.
Your statement may also be
used 1n other proceedings.

You may have a personal
representative present during
the taking of this statement
and may consult with your
representative at any time.

Your statement 1s completely

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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voluntary. You may refuse to

answer any question that 1i1s

asked of you. And you may

terminate your i1interview at

any time. You may also

request a break at any time.

Since this 1Is not an

adversarial proceeding, formal

cross-examination will not be

permitted; however, your

personal representative may

ask clarifying questions as

appropriate.

A court reporter will

record your Interview soO

please speak loudly and

clearly. IfT you do not

understand a question, please

ask me to repeat i1t or to

rephrase 1t. Please answer

each question as fTully as you

can,

including any 1information

you have learned from someone

else.

I would like to thank

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.

(814) 536-8908
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you 1n advance for your
appearance here today. We
appreciate your assistance 1n
this Investigation. Your
cooperation 1s critical 1In
making the nation®s mines
safer.

After we have finished
asking questions, you will
have an opportunity to make a
statement and provide us with
any other information that you
believe to be important. 1T
at any time after the
interview you recall any
information that you believe
might be useful, please
contact Richard Gates at the
telephone number and e-mail
address on this card.

Ms. Kirkwood, would you

swear In the witness?

TORREY HARVEY, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY
SWORN, TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.

(814) 536-8908
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MR. WATKINS:

Ms. Kirkwood, are you
empowered as a notary iIn the
State of Utah?

MS. KIRKWOOD

I am.

MR. WATKINS:

And when does your
commission expire?

MS. KIRKWOOD

August 15th, 2008.
MR. WATKINS:

Have you sworn iIn Mr.
Harvey?

MS. KIRKWOOD

I have.
BY MR. WATKINS:
Q. Mr. Harvey, do you go by
Torrey or ---7
AL Yes.
Q. And I"m Tim. So you can call

me Tim or whatever.
A All right.

Q.- Could you please state your

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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full name and address for the record,

please?

A. Torrey Andrew Harvey, (b) (7)(C)
(b) (7)(C)

Q.- Torrey, do you have any

questions about the 1nterview process

as | "ve described 1t?

A The what?

Q.- Do you have any questions
about the interview process ---7

A. No .

Q.- Torrey, do you have a personal

representative with you today?
AL Yes.
MR. WATKINS:

Would the personal
representative i1dentify
himself by name and address
for the record, please?

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Yes, I"m Thomas C.
Means at the Law Firm of
Crowell & Moring, LLP, 1n
Washington D.C. And 1 just

clarified, Mr. Harvey and 1

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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have discussed, 1"m the
company®"s attorney, not his
personal attorney. He has the
right to have anybody he wants
here with him today. And I™m
here at his request.

MR. WATKINS:

Okay.
ATTORNEY MEANS:

I1*"d also jJust like to
state for the record that like
the last witness, 1 should
have said 1t then, he®s been
working all night and 1s just
off work. And 1f he seems a
little sleepy, we all need to
be patient with him.

MR. WATKINS:

That®"s not a problem.
We"ll take time --- as much
time as we need to. And like
I said, 1f we need to take a
break, we can take a break and
let him get re-energized.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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Q. Torrey, are you aware that
your representative may have a
conflict of Interest In representing
you while being provided by someone

else, such as a company?

A Yeah.
MR. WATKINS:
Mr. Means, would you
state for the record --- you

already have, but could you
state for the record whether
you also represent the mine
operator i1n this matter?

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Yes, 1 do.

MR. WATKINS:

Okay.
BY MR. WATKINS:

Q- Torrey, with this
understanding, do you still want this
person as your representative?

A Yeah.

Q.- Torrey, are you appearing here
voluntarily?

A . Yeah.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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Q- And how many years mining

experience do you have?

A Three months.

Q. Three months total?

A About, yeah.

Q. And those three months, where
have you worked at? Is that all with

Crandall Canyon or did you work

somewhere else?

AL I worked at --- 1 worked at

Crandall. And then they transferred
us over to Tower for a day. I went
back to Crandall and then 1 went ---

over at West Ridge now.

Q. When did you start working for
West Ridge?

A Last Friday 1 did safety
training. And then yesterday ---
last night was my first night.

Q- So basically --- most of that
time Is --- most of those three
months has been at Crandall Canyon;

is that correct?

AL Uh-huh (yes).
Q- And what 1s your position?
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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A At Crandall 1 was operating

buggy when we were mining.

Q. You were a buggy operator?
A. Yeah.
Q.- Did you hold any other jobs,

do anything else at Crandall other
than run buggies?

A No, that was my main jJob.

Q.- And 1s this the position you
held on August the 5th, 2007, the day
before the accident?

AL I can"t remember what we were
doing the day before the accident, so
I couldn®t tell you that.

Q.- You don"t remember 1f you were

running the buggy the day before or

not?
A . Il can"t remember what was
going on the day before. It"s been

too long.

Q.- How far back do we go before
you can remember what you were ---
where you was at and what you were
doing?

A. Well, I can®"t remember very

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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many dates, like when things were
happening or anything like that. 1
wasn"t --- 1 didn"t --- at the time,

I didn*"t know I needed to pay
attention to things that was
happening.

Q.- Do you think a map of the area
may help you remember?

AL Not really. l"ve looked at
one quite a bit.

Q. When did you look at one?

A During the whole time --- this
whole thing.

Q. Well, let"s bring one out
anyway, just to see 1f 1t ---
something might come back to you.

AL Excellent.

MR. WATKINS:

Can we mark that Harvey
Exhibit One, please?

(Harvey Exhibit Number

One marked for

identification.)

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Could we just clarifty

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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for the record this map that®s
already Exhibit One, this 1i1s
printed by MSHA from the
AutoCAD provided by the
company?

MR. WATKINS:

That i1s correct.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

And will that be the
case with any other maps used
during this Interview?

MR. WATKINS:

There may be occasion
that we have one that we
generated, but 1711 let you
know when that i1s.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

All right.
BY MR. WATKINS:

Q.- Torrey, does that look

somewhat familiar to you?

A. Yeah. But what was going on,

I"m not ---.

Q.- Let"s not worry about the day

of the accident right now. We might
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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start back a little bit In time.

Maybe some of this stuff may come

back to you, hopefully.

A Okay.

Q.- You said you worked there
about three months. Do you know
where --- 1 mean, most people

remember the first day they come on
the section where they were at. Do
you remember where you was at the
first day you started?

AL We started, as soon as we"d
got 1n the mine first --- as my first
couple of days there, we were just

getting ready to set up for pillaring

out.
Q.- So they had already developed
the south main --- and jJjust for

reference, the bottom we refer to 1s

the south main pillar block; okay?

AL Here?
Q- Yeah, that®"s what they ---.
A All right.
Q. I don"t know what you refer to
it as. But ---.
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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A Okay, west main.
Q- West main. Okay . So the time
when you started, development was

completed; 1s that right?

A It was jJust getting finished
out, when 1 started.

Q- Just getting fTinished out.

A Yes.

Q. And then when you started ---

you started mining the pillars; 1s
that correct?

AL Uh-huh (yes).

Q.- And was you running buggy at
that time?

AL For about a week I was working
on different crews just helping out,
getting set up with everything. Then
after about the first week, |1
transferred on to Dale Black®"s crew.
And then 1 started running buggy.

Q- What shift do you work? Most
of them, they"ve got the three on
three off, or do you work straight
through?

A. We were working four on three

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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off, four 12°"s.

Q. And at the time of the
accident, 1"m referring to August
6th, 1s that the schedule you was on

at that time?

A Yeah.

Q. Four on and three off?

A Yeah.

Q. Do you remember what part of

that schedule you was 1In? Was 1t,
you know --- on the day of the

accident, was that your Friday

or ---7

A No, it was my last day.

Q.- It was your last day?

AL Yeah.

Q.- So the 5th would be like your
Friday?

A It should have been my last
day.

Q.- Okay. What time did you

normally start your shift? What time
did your shift run?
A l*"ve got to think for a

second.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q- Take your time. I*"m @In no
hurry.
A. l"ve been through too many

schedules since then.
Q. Do you know what time you

usually got home?

A . No, I can"t remember now.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

I*"m sorry, did you say
that Friday should be your
last day --- would"ve been

your last day?

A. I went 1n for --- 1 was going
in on days. And 1t was the graveyard
shift that 1t happened on. So that

--- that was my last day.
ATTORNEY MEANS:

Which day was that?

AL On the --- 1 guess on the 6th.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. The accident occurred on
Monday, so ---.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

So Sunday was your Jlast

day working before the

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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accident?
AL Yeah. I believe 1t was
Sunday, 1 believe. Let"s see, i1t
happened on a Monday?

BY MR. WATKINS:

21

Q.- It happened early Monday

morning.

A Then 1t was --- Monday was my

last day.

Q.- Monday was your last day.

AL Yeah .

Q. That®"s what 1 thought you

saitd, but ---.

A . Because I must have been

working a weekend shift then. So

Monday would have been my last day.

Q.- Monday would have been the

6th. So the last day that you

actually worked was the 5th then.

Friday would have been --- 1 mean

Monday would have been your last day;

right?

A Yeah. And I did go i1in that

day.

Q. Do you remember what time you
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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got there on the 6th?

AL I don™"t.

Q.- You say you worked days?

A . Yeah. I believe 1t was
normally 6:00 to 6:00 on days. But 1

remember the part of my crew that |

rode with from Price to Crandall were

going early. But I can"t remember 1if
we went --- how early we went.
Q.- Who did you normally ride

with? Who did you ride 1n with?

A There was Opie, or Cody
Ordener and Robert Vasquez and Lester
Day. And Darwon Stansfield went with
us that day. He was a mechanic. But
we were going to go 1n early and fix
our truck. But we didn"t end up
going 1n as early as we were going
to.

Q. And just so we"re all clear,
the last date you actually worked
there was on --- was on the 5th,

which would have been a Sunday.

A Before this happened. Because
I did work on the 6th. And then 1
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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worked the 7th and the 8th.

Q. Okay. So on the 5th 1t was
6:00 to 6:00, 6:00 1n the morning.

Do you remember what time you got
there that morning on the 5th?

AL On the 5th?

Q.- On the 5th, the day before the
accident.

AL I don™"t.

Q. Do you remember --- anything
come back to you as far as what you
--- what you done on the 5th? You
don"t have any i1dea what time you
went 1n or anything like that?

AL It doesn"t ---.

Q.- Well, you said you ran buggy |1
guess for them, since the time that
they started the retreat mining
process; right?

A Uh-huh (yes).

Q. In general, how far back did
they keep the power center from the
pillar line? How many breaks 1s that
usually kept back?

A Just depends on --- well, 1

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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guess --- let me think. It was two

to three breaks back.

Q.- Two to three breaks?
A. Yeah.
Q.- And as far as the barrier

pillar, initial barrier block towards
the south --- do you remember taking
cuts out of a barrier block?
AL Yeah, 1 do.
Q.- Do you remember how deep those
cuts were normally taken?
A. I couldn®"t tell you how many
feet 1t was, but the miner was 1in
--- you know, was turned 1nto the
barrier. And 1*d follow into him.
And 1*"d touch the back of his miner
with my buggy. And my cab would just
come --- come right to the last row
of bolts there.
Q. Okay. Do you mind 1f 1 get
another map just a little bit larger
than this one?
A That"s fine.

MR. WATKINS:

Can we mark this

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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Exhibit Two, please? This 1s

Two .
(Harvey Exhibit Number
Two marked for
identification.)
MR. WATKINS:
And this map was also
taken off of CAD ---. It*s
another version. This doesn*™t

go all the way up, though,
like the other one did. But
this 1s representative of the
section.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q- And this 1s approximately
where they were at the day of the
accident. And I"m jJust trying to
clarify, again, you don"t know
exactly what break you was at on the
5th. Just for a --- jJust for a point
of reference, this whole sump area

that was 1n the north mains, with the

A The stopping lines.
Q. --- stopping lines set around,
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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do you remember that?

A Yeah, 1 remember 1t, but |1
don"t remember when 1t was.

Q- I thought that might ---.

A I remember at a point 1n time
the kitchen was here.

Q.- Could you --- 1f you don*"t
care, would you grab a pen?

A . But I don"t know 1f I was a

26

---— 11l just say, 1| know that 1t had

been there at a point iIn time.

MR. WATKINS:

Okay.
ATTORNEY MEANS:

And where are you
indicating to?

MR. WATKINS:

He"s going --- 1f you
look there, he®"s going to put
an X there.

AL The kitchen was here.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Put K there, maybe, 1s
a good 1dea.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q- Yeah, just write out kitchen

or something would be fine.

A . And here"s the feeder.

Q. You put the X for the feeder
between Crosscuts 139 and 140 1n the
Number Two entry; i1s that correct?
AL Yeah.

Q.- Okay. And you marked the
kitchen straight above that 1n the
Number Three entry, just above ---.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

And to clarify, you're
saying, Torrey, that you
recall that at some point 1n
time, but you don®"t know 1f
that was your last day?

AL Correct.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. I think --- when 1 went to get
the map, I think you was kind of
describing to us how they took the
cuts out of the barrier block. Could
you use a pen and just i1llustrate
there on that drawing. I"m not

saying that we had to be between 142

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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and 141, necessarily, but just 1iIn
general how you normally took the
cuts out of the barrier, using this

as a drawing.

A Okay.

Q.- Could you do that for me,
please?

A Well, 1t was just a --- 1

can"t draw very good, but ---.

Q.- That"s okay, I can"t either.
WITNESS COMPLIES

AL Similar to that.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q- Okay. And where would the
mobile support be when those cuts are
taken, just on the first cut, where

would the mobile supports be?

A On the very Tfirst cut here?
Q. Yeah, just on the first cut
there. Just give me some kind of

reference point where they would be
at.

A They would be --- on which
side? IT you were taking a cut out

of the barrier or out of the pillar?

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q. On the first cut, on the

barrier.

AL Here?

Q.- On the barrier side, yes.
AL Well, they would be ---.
Q.- And approximately how deep

were those barrier cuts?

A I couldn®"t tell you in feet.
Q.- Okay. How did you --- how did
you 1llustrate --- what did you use

for measurement? You said the miner

would be Iin so far and ---.

A The miner would be iIn. And
I*d come 1n and my --- the back ---
or the --- 1 don"t know 1f you want

to call 1t the back or the front of
my buggy, back 1 guess, would touch
the back of the miner. And 1t"s like
--- you know, 1t"s like underneath
the feeder, the tail piece of the
miner. And my cab wouldn®"t --- never
did go underneath unsupported tower.
Q. Okay. Do you know how far i1t

is from your cab to the front of your

buggy?

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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A Uh-uh (no).

Q- What kind of buggy i1s 1t, what

size, model number?

A. It was number eight, that®s
all 1 know.

Q.- Number eight, okay. You don*"t
remember 1f It was --- was 1t a Joy

--- was it a Joy buggy?
A . I"m not sure.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Just for clarification,
I want to be sure |1
understand, your drawing there
of the type of cuts you took
out of the barrier and out of
the pillar, ---

AL Uh-huh (yes).
ATTORNEY MEANS:

--- to the right,
you"re 1llustrating generally
and not 1ndicating that you
took those cuts at that
location; 1s that correct?

A. Yeah, that®"s not saying at

that location.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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MR. WATKINS:

IT you like, we can
mark that 141 ---.
ATTORNEY MEANS:

That would probably be
a good 1dea. Why don®"t you
just write this 1In.

MR. WATKINS:

That way, we just know
that 1t"s not a --- 1t"s
just ---.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Standard, right.

MR. WATKINS:

Okay.
BY MR. WATKINS:
Q. Do you know approximately how
many --- how many buggies you would

get out of a cut Iinto the barrier

block, how many times you

actually ---7

AL I wouldn®"t have a clue.

Q. How many --- how many shuttle
cars are on the section --- do you

run on the section?
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A. We were running two.

Q- You were running two.

A For most of the time. When we
could, we were running two. When we
couldn®"t, I"d just --- or one of us

would Just run, jJjust depending.

Q.- You don"t know how many trips
you would make back underneath the
--- underneath the miner during the
pillar cut --- or barrier cut,

cutting the barrier?

A It Just depends on the day.
Q. Did you also mark some cuts
taken out of the --- out of the

pillar between Number One and Number
Two entry on this drawing, straight
across from the barrier cuts?

AL Yes.

Q.- Do you know how deep those

cuts were taken?

A Uh-uh (no). I couldn™t tell
you. These are --- 1t"s things that
I --- 1 mean I was only there for so
long.

Q. That"s fine.
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A And 1t wasn"t things that 1

was really trying to pay attention
to, because I had no 1dea I needed
to, you know.
Q. You®"re doing fine. I"m jJust
trying to ask some questions, 1t
might bring some of the stuff --- 1t
might bring some of 1t back to you.
AL Uh-huh (yes).

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Let me just ask, those
two blocks there, those are
cuts, what, of the floor?

AL These, these are MRSs.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

They"re MRSs.
A Yeah.
BY MR. WATKINS:

Q.- And Just to clarify 1In my
mind, those cuts that you"re showing
there, you got blocked out, i1s that
miner wide or i1s that 20-feet wide or
how wide are those cuts?

A Probably just --- just over

the width of the miner by a few feet.
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Q.- Okay. So do you know 1f the

miner then would, you know, take the
cut up, sunk 1n, and then would he
back all the way up and then

just take a little turn ---7°

A Just to turn i1tself 1Into the

--- 1into the pillar or the barrier.

Q- Okay.

AL That was why 1t was wide to
cut.

Q. On these drawings, you show

the first cut 1in the barrier and the
second cut 1in the barrier to be, you
know, side by side.

AL Uh-huh (yes).

Q. Did they actually cut into
each other or did you leave a foot or
anything like that?

A That 1 can"t remember either.
I can --- at other point --- at other
times, 1 don"t know when 1t was, but
I can remember seeing little pieces,
you know, ten by ten piece of coal
left as a little pillar, you know.

But I don"t remember where or
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anything.
Q. When you were mining out or
retreat mining out of the south
barrier, do you remember anything
about the conditions that you was
encountering, roof conditions?
AL The roof conditions seemed
fine to me, you know, from what 1
knew. There was --- there was a
pillar I1n the mine prior to this
time. I don"t know how long, but
there was a pillar. And I"m just
going to demonstrate on one of
em ---
Q. Okay.
A --- that say from here to
about here there i1s about a six 1nch
to eight 1nch gap across, between the

pillar and the roof.

Q- Between the pillar and the
roof?

A Uh-huh (yes).

Q.- But you said that was prior to

the 6th; 1s that correct, sometime

prior to the 6th?
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A Uh-huh (yes). And where at, |1

don"t know.

Q. Okay.

A . I did see that, and --- 1
witnessed that. I saw that, but 1
never --- | don"t remember where 1t

was at or anything.
Q.- Okay. Do you remember there
being coal that was displaced under

the crosscut at entries fTor that

or ---72

A Yeah, we had to clean up an
entry to get in to --- 1t was around
that area. I hate to say, because |1

don"t know where 1t"s at.

Q.- That®"s okay, take your time.
That"s okay, yeah. There®"s a bigger
map underneath there, too. That
might ---

AL Yeah.

Q.- --- show more of the area. Do

you remember i1f there was any
additional support In that area, can
it be separated from the roof?

A . IT I remember what we were
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doing, 1 could tell you, but ---.

Q. Okay. You can®"t remember
where that"s at.

A Uh-uh (no). I can"t. No,
it"s been too long. IT 1t was the
day after, 1 could have told you.

Q.- You didn*"t keep any kind of
notes or anything like that?

AL No .

Q. Any other --- any other
condition that you remember
encountering?

A Again, sometime prior to the
6th, me and Elam Jones were 1In a
pretty --- pretty hard bounce.

Q.- By bounce, what do you mean by
bounce? What®"s your definition of a
bounce? I*"m from the East, so |1

mean, my definition and yours may be

different. So I"m just trying to get

us on the same --- same page.

A Well, what®"s your definition?

Q. Well, we don®"t have too many

bounces. We call them --- most of

ours are bumps. But 1*d rather ---
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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I"m more Interested 1n what your
definition 1i1s. I can work with your

version better than you working with

mine.

A I don"t know how to explain
1t. Just ---.

Q. I mean, 1 don"t want to put
--- you know, put words 1n your
mouth. Just the best you can ---.

A Yeah.

Q.- The best you can describe what

it means to you.

A It was Just relieving pressure
out of the ribs to me.

Q.- Okay. Is there any noise
associated with 1t?

AL Yeah, there"s loud noise
associated with 1t.

Q. Is there any coal when ---

would coal be displaced from the

ribs?
A Yeah.
Q. And just so we"re on the same

page, could you have a bounce, 1In

your definition and coal not be
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displaced, just be the noise?

A Yeah.

Q.- Okay. So 1f you heard the
noise and that, to you, that was a
bounce.

A Yeah, well, I mean 1t doesn™t
--- Just "cause your --- jJust "cause
you hear a bounce doesn®"t mean you©"re
right next to 1t, you know. You can
hear a bounce from a long ways away.
And you don"t know where i1t happened
or you can"t see coal being displaced
from the rib or anything like that.
Q.- Okay. Now, we got that out of
the way. You said you and Elam. Was

it Elam Jones ---

A. Elam Jones.
Q. --- that heard the bounce?
A Yeah. Well, we were right

next to this bounce.

Q- Right next to i1t?

AL Uh-huh (yes).

Q. And could you tell me a little
bit about --- about that, what

happened?
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AL It was probably the hardest

bounce, Just a bounce that 1"ve

heard, In a mine. But 1t wasn®"t like
a cave, you know. It wasn®"t as hard
as that. But 1t was a pretty hard
bounce. And we were right next to
it. It didn"t displace very much
from the ribs. It cracked a timber
that we were right next to. And 1t

bounced us off the ground quite a

ways .

Q. Did it actually knock you
down?

AL Yeah, 1t knocked me down. It

didn"t knock Elam down, he was able

to stand up. But were both kneeling
down and 1t bounced. And 1t bounced
us both up off the ground. And 1

fell down and he put his feet
underneath him and he was standing
up -

Q.- Okay. Do you have any
perception about how long before the
6th this happened, a week before, a

day before?
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A It was a couple of days.

Q.- Couple of days.

A Uh-huh (yes). Probably one to
three days, 1*"d give 1t, before 1t
happened.

MR. WATKINS:

Okay. Let"s mark that.

Assuming that i1s at 142.
(Harvey Exhibit Number
Three marked for
identification.)

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. How many cuts do you normally
get a shift?

AL I don®"t know. See, these are
things 1 don"t pay --- | didn"t pay
attention to at the time.

ATTORNEY CASEY:

Do you remember what
the most cuts were that you
got, Torrey?

A Probably 150 buggies a night.

ATTORNEY CASEY:

Do you remember the

least amount?
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A Sometimes none, depending on
what we were doing. IT we had to
move power and belt, you know, we
couldn®"t mine any coal 1n the same
night, there was too much to do.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. Just on an average --- on an
average shift, what would you say

your average number would be?

A 120.
Q. 120°?
A Yeah, that was a good shift.
Q.- How many tons would you get

per buggy?

A. I believe they were giving us

ten tons a buggy.

Q.- Ten tons per buggy? Do you
remember --- 1 think 1 might have

asked you this already, but 1 don"t
remember. Do you remember how many

buggies you®"d get out of a cut?

A Uh-uh (no).

Q. So you and Elam experienced
this bump?

A Uh-huh (yes).

42
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Q. It happened one to three days

prior to the accident on the 6th.

AL Uh-huh (yes).

Q.- You said 1t cracked the
timber?

A . It cracked --- there was a row
of timber set next --- 1n the --- 1n
the entry, probably eight timbers
along a --- along the entry, you know
and 1t cracked just one of them.

Q.- It cracked jJust one of them.
A Yeah. And they didn*"t look

like they took any weight or

anything. It Just cracked one of the
timbers. I didn"t know 1f 1t was
just because of the --- some of the

--- a piece of coal hit 1t or

something but ---.

A. Did it crack 1t all the way
down or just ---7

A Just partially.

Q. About how big was this timber?
A Probably ten 1nches 1in

diameter.

Q.- You said 1t was In the --- 1n
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the entry where this timber ---7
AL Uh-huh (yes), i1t was i1n one of

the entries.

Q.- One of the entries.
A. Yeah.
Q. Okay. So that means either

one, two or three; right? Because

you don"t mine the fourth one; right?

A It was 1In one of those three,
yeah.
Q.- Okay. Did you see the floor

heave or anything like that that was
associated with 1t?

AL Yeah, 1 saw a floor heave, but
then again, I couldn®"t tell you where
It was at.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Can we clarify. His
question was, was --- did you
see a floor heave that was
associated with that bounce or
bump?

A Oh, no. Not at that same
time, no.

BY MR. WATKINS:
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Q.- That®"s okay, you get the

second one anyway. The second one

was, did you ever see any floor heave

associrated ---7?

AL Yeah, 1t wasn®"t associated
with that --- that bounce.

Q.- Okay. But you have seen ---7°
AL I have seen --- there was a
floor --- there"s some floor heaves

in there.
Q.- Okay. And can you describe
those to me jJust a little bit, how

high up did 1t heave or anything like

that?

A At the most, probably two
feet.

Q.- And, again, you don*"t recall
where you seen the --- where you seen
that?

A No, 1 jJust ---.

Q. In general, would that be more

towards the barrier side, do you
think? I mean, you"re talking more
towards the barrier side or to the

right side or left side of the
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section, looking back?

A I couldn®t tell you.

Q. Did the miner ever back up and
take out the floor heave, cut the

floor heave out?

A . We never --- 1 --- we never
had to back up to clean 1t out. We
had --- but before we went in to

there, we had to clean 1t out.
Q.- So 1t actually moved up beside
--- beside of you, an entry to ---

adjacent to where you was at or maybe

behind you or ---7
AL It was --- 1t was 1n one of
these. Say 1t was straight down this

or straight down here or straight
down here. It sloughed off the ribs
enough to where we had to clean 1t
--- clean up the entry again to get
in there, to mine 1t out.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Could we clarify that?
Are you talking about cleaning
out sloughage from the ribs or

are you talking about cleaning
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the floor heave or both?
A . Both.
BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. What were the conditions of
the pillars during --- | mean were
they --- were all the pillars

sloughed?

AL It didn"t seem like there was
anything i1rregular to me.

Q- By irregular, you mean i1t ---7
A Something that 1 would worry
about by seeing 1t.

Q.- When you --- when you started
in that section, and you started to
reclean 1t out, did the bumps seem to

get more frequent as you developed?

A Yeah, 1t got progressively
worse.

Q. It got progressively worse?

A Yeah.

Q. Would that be --- when you say

worse, 1S that in sound or In number,

or severity or both or ---7

A. Both.

Q- So as you were coming out, the
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bumps were getting more frequent?

A More frequent and harder.

Q. And harder.

A Yeah.

Q. What about water? Was any
water associated --- was there any
water problems in that --- 1n that
area?

A Yeah, 1t was in the --- 1t was

in the Number One roadway.
Q.- Road number one.
A. And that 1s --- that"s --- 1t

was somewhere down in the section in

the Number One roadway. It was
between --- because | was running the
Number One roadway 1In my buggy. It

was somewhere between the feeder and
the miner and the Number One roadway.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

What was?
A A big water hole.
BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. Was 1t big enough where you

had to set a pump --- where they had

to set a pump to pump 1t out or ---7
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A Yeah. I think they --- 1

believe they set a pump there.
Q- Did the pump stay there? 1
mean, did they --- did 1t constantly

build up there, they"d just pump it

down and ---?
A I think that was just
something that --- let me think about

it for a second.

Q.- Okay. Take your time.

A I don"t know when that puddle
accumulated litke that, but 1t was ---
that"s all I remember about 1t.

Q. Okay. Did 1t present any

problems to the miners or buggies

hauling 1n that area? I mean, did i1t
get soft or ---7

A No, it was --- the buggies
went through 1t. My buggy went

through 1t just fine.

Q. Okay.

A It was deep, but 1t went
through 1t just fine.

Q. Okay. Do you recall i1f there

was any top coal or bottom coal left
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on that section? When you were
retreating out, was the top coal, was
it --- was 1t rock?

A I couldn®t tell you that. |

didn"t pay attention to 1t.

Q. What about In the bottom? Was
there any bottom coal being ---7°

AL There was still some bottom
coal left. The biggest place 1

remember seeing that i1s in the
barrier.
Q. In the barrier?
A Uh-huh (yes).
MR. WATKINS:

Okay.
ATTORNEY MEANS:

For clarification, 1is
that the biggest place,
Torrey, that you saw bottom
coal taken or bottom coal
left?

A Bottom coal taken.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q- They were actually mining some
of the bottom --- bottom coal at any
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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time that you recall?

A Just --- the only time |1
remember mining 1t was In --- 1n the
barrier, you know, after --- not ---.

They"d kind of slope 1t down just a

little towards where we®"re going to

cut ---

Q. Uh-huh (yes).

AL --- and then turn 1Into the
cut. And then after --- when we were

done with that cut, 1t was pretty
deep. It was --- 1t wasn"t just
straight across.

Q.- Do you have any i1dea how much
coal was taken out of the bottom?

A It would probably --- 1%d
guess seven feet, eight feet normally
in the entry. And 1"d say probably
14 feet where we®"d already --- where
we mined i1n the barrier.

Q. Seven to eight feet, and 1t"s
14, so that would be roughly six feet
of --- six feet of bottom coal that

was taken?

A . Yeah.
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Q.- And was that the whole way up
the barrier --- barrier block?
AL I think that at times there

was more coal sometimes on the floor
than there was on other, you know ---
soO ---.

Q. But do you take the bottom

coal out of the barriers, regardless

of ---?

A Yeah. I can remember taking
it, yeah.

Q.- What about --- what about the

pillars? Did you guys take it out of
the pillars? You would also take
bottom coal out of the pillar ---?

AL I can"t remember as much out

of the pillars as the barrier, ---

Q. Uh-huh (yes).

A --- 1f any, out of the
pillars.

Q. I think before we back up, we

started from

-- about them working
out. And we said that the bumps were
getting more frequent and a little

bit worse iIn severity.
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AL Uh-huh (yes).
Q.- How about the floor heave, did
it get --- did 1t also get any worse

or did you tell any difference?

A I can only remember two floor
heaves. And 1t was 1n one --- like 1
saitd, in one of the entries that we
were mining out of. And we had to
clean 1t out before we went back 1n
--- or before we went into 1t. And
then there was one along the belt
line, somewhere back a little ways
from the feeder and everything. It
was back there a little bit and there
was a pretty good floor heave where
it was right underneath the belt.

Q.- Underneath the belt. Okay.

So that would be the Number ---

Number Two entry? The belt was 1In

Number Two ---7?
A. Yeah.
Q.- The shuttle car you operated,

was 1t an off-size shuttle car or a
standard size?

AL Standard.
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Q.- Standard size. Going back to

Exhibit Number Two that you have,
where would your buggy be anchored
at? Where was your buggy anchored at
in reference to where the feeder
would be at in the Number Two entry?
A IfT --- Just, you know, say ---
you know, we"re not using this.

Q. Yeah, don"t --- we"re not
paying attention to ---.

AL IT the feeder 1s here and we
were mining here, 1 would be anchored

right here.

Q.- Okay. And your normal route
of travel would be towards --- over
to number one and ---7?

A. Yeah, this would be my normal

route of travel.
OFF RECORD DISCUSSION
ATTORNEY CASEY:

Identify what that 1s.

MR. WATKINS:

Let me get --- let me
mark 1t on here.

BY MR. WATKINS:
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Q.- So you"re saying your buggy
would be --- was anchored on the left
side of the Number Two entry? The
left si1ide of the crosscut going
between two and one. And your normal
route of travel would be from the
feeder south to the Number One entry
and then up towards this section or
up towards the faces?

A They"d be just anchored right
on the corner.

Q- Right on the corner?

A . Yeah. The feeder would be
sitting here.

Q.- And the other buggy would be
anchored --- do you know where he was
anchored at?

A Right here. I usually never

had to change my anchor point, but he

did.

Q. Okay.

A He had to change sometimes.

Q.- And when would he have to

change?

A I couldn®t tell you. I never
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had to move them, so ---.
Q. So the feeder 1s 1In number ---
in number two. Where 1s --- where
would the power center be? Where
would 1t be?
AL In the kitchen.
Q- You"ve got the kitchen and the
power center both on number three.
A Yeah.
Q. Were there any --- what other
equipment was on the section? What

other equipment did you have on the

section?

A There was another buggy.

Q. Uh-huh (yes).

AL Where 1t was at, | don"t know.
Q.- Okay. So you got two buggies
and you"ve got a --- of course you“ve
got the --- there®"s the miner.

AL Uh-huh (yes).

Q. But how many MRSs did you
have?

A Four.

Q.- Four. Okay. Was there a

scoop on the section?
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A Uh-huh (yes). There was --- |1

can remember one.

Q. One?

AL Yeah.

Q.- Was 1t battery-powered or ---7
AL Uh-huh (yes).

Q.- Battery-powered?

AL Battery.

Q- Did 1t have a charging

station?

A Yeah.

Q. Do you remember where 1t would
be located at?

A No . Somewhere --- 1t was just
somewhere up iIn the west main, just
in one of these crosscuts, where at,

I don"t know.

Q.- Crosscut on the 1ntake side?
AL Uh-huh (yes).
Q.- How about the ventilation? Do

you know whether ventilation controls

were ran on this section?

A During pillar?
Q. Yeah.
A Not really.
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Q.- Did you carry a methane
spotter or detector with you?

A. No, there was people with me.
Q. But you never carried one
personally?

A No, not until after this.

Q.- Okay. Do you ever recall an
occasion when they would have methane
encountered on the section?

AL No, never.

Q. And what about low --- 1low
oxygen?

A Uh-uh (no).

Q.- Even --- even after these

bumps and things, you never

encountered any ---7?

A . No, I don"t think we ever had
any problems with that, that 1 was
aware of, that 1 was told about.

Q.- Jumping ahead a little bit now
to the --- to the 6th, the day of the
accident. Did you come i1n that day

at your normal time?

A We were a little bit early.
How long, I don"t know. We jJust ---
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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it was kind of a weird day.
Q. When did you learn about the

accident?

A. As soon as we got Into the
bathhouse. Well, on our way up to
the mine, we followed a cop. And

there was usually never a cop up
there, so we figured --- well, we
didn"t know what was going on. And
then there was an ambulance sitting
outside by the Conspect --- by the
warehouse.

Q. Rather than me asking you a

59

bunch of --- bunch of questions about

the day, 1 f you can, jJjust start with

the time when you got to the mine and

jJust kind of walk me through what you

remember about that day, what you had

done that day.

A. As soon as we got to the mine,

we moved out Into the bathhouse and a

boss ---. Il can"t remember who it

was, one of the bosses told us to get

dressed as fast as we could, we

needed to go help. So we did. And
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we headed down iInto the mine.

Q- Do you remember who? I "m
sorry, go ahead.

AL And we went down there and we
set up the fresh air base right off
the bat. And then there was only a
few people setting up the fresh air
base and then there was others just
trying to re-establish all the
ventilation.

Q.- Do you remember what time you
went 1into the mine?

AL No .

Q.- Do you remember what time you
got 1n the section?

A Uh-uh (no). That was
definitely not what we were worried

about that day.

Q. Okay. Who did you ride 1in
with?

AL I can"t remember that.

Q. Okay. Do you remember who was

in charge on the section that day?

A When 1t happened?
Q. No, when --- when you got iInto
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the mine, when you arrived on the
section, do you remember who was 1in
charge on the section at that time?
A There was so many people
running around.

Q. Can you recall who 1t was that
told you to get dressed and go into
the mine?

A Uh-uh (no).

Q.- So what role did you play upon

arriving at the section? What did

you do?
A I helped with the fresh air
base a little bit. And then we

headed back and started doing ---
putting up brattice, trying to
re-establish the ventilation.

Q. Do you remember where the
fresh airr base was located at?

A. 121.

Q. 121, okay. And let"s go back
to Exhibit One, 1f we could get the

map that was marked.

AL Hang on a second.
Q- Just get familiar with 1t
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.

(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

62

there for a minute.

WITNESS COMPLIES

A It"s been too long ago. For
some reason, 120 --- well, yeah, 1
believe the fresh air base was at
121.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q.- IfT you don®"t care, do you just
want to mark FAB or something for
fresh ailr base at 1217

ATTORNEY CASEY:

And Torrey, you're
marking on Exhibit One?

MR. WATKINS:

Exhibit One, yes.
BY MR. WATKINS:

Q- Okay. So you marked 121 1in
the Number One entry.

A Uh-huh (yes).

Q- Can you recall anybody that
was there with you at 121 at the
fresh air base?

A No .

Q. Okay. When you say

established a fresh air base at 121,

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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what did you actually do?

A We put timbers up.
Q.- Do you remember where you put
the timbers --- where you placed the

timbers?

A. All across Number One entry.
I don"t know how many of them there
were. They were across Number One

entry and then across here.

Q. So across number one ---7?
A. With the crosscut.
Q. Just inby 121 and then also in

the crosscut between one and two?

A Yeah.

Q.- Just Inby the --- jJust to the
right of the Number One entry?

A Yeah. There was quite a few,
I don"t know how many.

Q.- So after you put the timbers
up, what --- what were the conditions
like when you set those timbers, do

you remember?

A. There was ---.
Q.- What was the roof conditions
like?
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A There was a lot of sloughage.
Q.- A lot of sloughage.
A I mean, you know, you could

tell 1t was caved right up to here,
right up to the fresh ailr base.

Q. Up to where they cut the 121
in the Number One entry?

A Yeah.

Q.- What about the crosscut
between number one and number two,
what did 1t look like?

A I can"t remember.

Q. When you set the timbers, did
you have to shovel out some or clean
out a place to set the timbers?

A Yeah. You always do anyways.
Q.- Did you have to pull out more
than normal, what you normally had to
pull out? I mean, did you --- 15

there sloughage or anything like

that?
A. I can"t remember.
Q. Did you have the occasion to

go Into any of the other entries?

You marked number one that you went
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to number one. Did you go into

Number Two, Three or Four entries?

AL At what time?

Q. At this time, on the 6th, when
you was underground with the --- on
the 6th.

AL The mine rescue came 1n and 1

belrteve 1t was on the 6th, the same
day 1t happened. And they sent ---
they were going back just to try to
find a way through all the debris.

Q. Uh-huh (yes).

A And they tried number one. |
don"t know how far they got, but they
decided 1t wasn®"t any good. And so
then they started heading back
through different parts. And 1

headed back there with them at one

time.
Q. You went with them?
A . Yeah. Il --- we took back

materials for them, like buckets and
shovels and ---.
Q.- Do you remember what area you

traveled or how you traveled over to
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there?
A. Not exactly, no.
Q.- Okay. Do you remember what

the conditions were like 1In the belt
entry, when you crossed over ---

crossed over the belt to get to that

side?

A Not good.

Q.- The conditions wasn®"t good

or ---72

AL No, I mean --- you went --- 1

know we followed the belt entry for a

ways.
Q. Okay.

AL It was hands and knees between
the coal and the ceinling. And vyou
could --- 1In some parts you could see

the belt structure and the belt and
it was all twisted up and mangled.

Q.- Was that due to the sloughage
off the ribs?

AL I don"t know. I don"t know
exactly what happened or else 1 could
tell you.

Q- Okay. Did you come straight

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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across 121 or did you have to back up
to --- to get across over 1nto the
Number Two entry?

A We went straight across 121.
Q- Strartght across 121. Okay.
How about the Number Three entry? Do
you remember what the condition was
like 1n number three?

A Where at, I don®"t know, but we
followed the belt line for a couple
breaks, a few breaks. And then we
turned up and went 1nto the re-entry.
And we started heading back that way.
And we got to a point where 1t was
--- 1t was just crawling, you know,
not even on hands and knees. And
that"s where they had the --- they
started using buckets and shovels to
try to get the ---.

Q. Do you remember what crosscut

that was at?

AL 126.

Q. 1267

A Just right about here.

Q. Can you put an X between 126
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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and 12772

WITNESS COMPLIES
A Just barely into number ---
barely i1into 1t.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q- In the Number Three entry,
okay. What was the conditions like
at that location? I know you said
you had to --- you had to crawl and

that was as far as you could get

without using the buckets; 1s that

right?
A. Yeah.
Q- So behind you, what was it

like behind you? How high was 1t

or ---7

A At some point, 1t --- 1t was
jJjust --- 1 mean 1t wasn"t ever the
same. You know, 1t was continually

being different, but at points there
was times you could barely stand ---
you could stand on your feet but you
were bent over as far as you could
get. And then there was points

sitting say where the i1ntersection
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was, where there wasn®t as much
sloughage because there was more open
areas that you could stand up 1n
there.

Q. And you were traveling with
the mine rescue team at that point?
AL Yeah. They were --- they had
already headed back 1n there. And we
followed them i1In there the first
time. And then we headed back 1in
there with buckets.

Q.- When you say, we fTfollowed them
in, who --- do you remember who was

with you?

A No . There was a bunch of
people.
Q.- How long after you established

a fresh air base did the mine rescue
team show up? You said you
established ---.

A I don"t know, 1 think the mine
rescue team was already there when we
got there. I think. Il can™t
remember that well.

Q.- And the purpose for you going
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with them was to do what?

AL Well, we took --- we took them
supplies that time, with the bucket
--- when we took the buckets and
everything else back.

Q. Okay.

A. I think that one of the ---
somebody higher up than myself, a
boss or something, followed "em back
in there and was trying, you know, to
help them out and see what was going
on 1In there. And then that®"s when we
--- they took --- we jJust took them
back buckets and everything after
that.

Q.- Okay. So you made 1t over to
the Number Three entry 1In between 126
and 127. You couldn®"t go any further
at that point.

A Uh-huh (yes).

Q. Did you go to the Number Four

entry after that?

AL I didn"t.

Q.- You didn*t?

A No . IT they did, 1 don"t
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know.

Q. Did you ever have to don an
SCSR?

AL No .

Q. Do you remember what the air

quality readings were at that

location between 126 and 12772

AL I remember "em saying
something about 1t wasn"t good. But
I don"t know what --- what the

qualities were, what the numbers
were. But 1 know that they were
saying 1t wasn"t very good.
Q. Do you know 1f the mine rescue
team had theilr apparatuses on or
don"t you recall?
AL No .

ATTORNEY MEANS:

No, you don"t recall or
no, they didn"t have them on?
A No, they didn"t have them on.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. So we get to 126, 127 and
can"t go any Ffurther. And what did

you do after that, at that point?
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AL After that was done, 1 went
back and we started putting up
stoppings and everything.

Q.- Do you remember where you went
back to?

A. I know the stoppings were
blown out to 93.

Q. And you know that by

observation, you had seen them out?

A. Yeah, 1 saw it.
Q. You saw that?
A Yeah, 93 wasn®"t very bad and 1

know there was some people that said

that 93 wasn®"t blown out, just to 94,

but I saw 93 and I TfTixed 1t.

Q.- You saw damage to 937

AL Yeah.

Q- We"re on this map here.

AL Yeah.

Q- Which stopping was i1t that you

remember was damaged?

A Let me think about 1t again.
Q. Take your time.

AL This map 1s jJust kind of

confusing. It was jJust right next to
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the travelway.

Q- And which entry 1s the ---
which entry i1s the travelway?

A It"s over --- 1 guess 1t would
have been that.

Q.- The travelway i1s the Number
Two entry; 1s that correct, at that
location?

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Do you know?
A. Yeah. Yeah, that was 1t.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. Okay. And you i1ndicated which
--- the stopping at 93 between the
Number Two and Number Three entry, 1s
that the one you iIndicated?

AL Yeah.

Q. When you --- when you say that
was damaged, was 1t totally out or
just ---7

A . No, 1t wasn"t as bad as the
rest, 1t was jJust pushed out at the
top a little bit.

Q. Which way was i1t pushed

towards, do you remember?
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A. No.
Q. Are there an other stoppings
--- 1s that a --- was that a Kennedy

stopping or what kind of stopping was

that?
A Kennedy .
Q.- Kennedy. Was there any other

stopping that you recall being
damaged or being totally out?

A About 90 percent of the
stoppings between 93 and all the way
up to 121 were damaged.

Q. Okay. On both sides?

A A lot of the Kennedy panels.
A lot of the Kennedy panel ones were

completely blown out.

Q. Okay. Is that --- was that
true for both sides of the ---7?

A Sometimes, at some points,
yes.

Q.- Do you remember which ones you

actually worked on repairing or

fixing?

A About all of them.
Q. About all of them.
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A At one --- at some point 1In
time, about all of them. Because we
went --- we put up rags the fTirst
day. And then at another time we
went up --- we went In and put up
Kennedy stoppings.
Q.- And on this particular day, on
the 6th, we"re still working on the
6th, how many stoppings do you think
you might have worked on repairing
and how far down ---7?
A At the end of the day, we had
rags all the way up to here, up to
the fresh ailr base.
Q. Here would be the fresh air
base at 121. Okay. Do you remember
how many people were working on
putting these stoppings up or
repairing these stoppings?
AL Everybody that was available.
Q.- Okay. What did --- after you
got the stoppings up, what did you do
next getting them repaired?
A . I think that®"s all we did that
day.
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Q. Okay. And do you know what

time you got outside?

AL What®"s that?

Q. Do you know what time you got
outside?

A Uh-uh (no).

Q.- Do you recall speaking to
anyone when you got outside to tell
them what you had done or anything or
anybody from MSHA asking you any

questions?

A I don"t remember anything.
Q.- Okay. Were you i1nvolved any
from the --- let"s just take a period

of time say between the two
accidents, the first one, | believe,

was on the 6th, the day that you was

in there. The second being on the
16th.

A Okay.

Q.- Between the 6th and 16th, did

you work any of the time between

those two days --- two dates?

A. Yeah.

Q.- What was your --- what did you
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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do between those two dates?
AL Like I said, we --- at another
time, we put up the Kennedy stoppings

instead of jJust the rags.

Q. Okay.
A It was jJust everything we
could do. And then, you know, 1 mean

putting up rock props and all that.
Trying to get in there ---.

Q- Were you i1nvolved 1n the

initial --- 1n the 1nitial cleanup or
the 1nitial recovery operations?

They started on the --- like on the
--- 1 believe the 7th. Did you work
on the face area any?

AL I did work in the face, but on
what date, I don®"t know.

Q.- Do you remember what you had

done the date you worked 1n the face?

A No .

Q.- You don"t know what you was
doing?

A. Well, like I said, they®"d mine
it out and then go i1In. And 1T they

had to, they®"d bolt and then we®"d put
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in rock props.
Q.- Okay. Did you work the day

after the accident? Did you work the

7th?
AL Uh-huh (yes). Yes.
Q.- Do you remember what you had

done on that day, on the 7th?

AL No .

Q. Do you remember whether a
recovery operation was taking place
yet In that entry or anything on the
7th when the i1nitial recovery

operation began?

A No, not really.
Q. Do you remember working on the
7th --- was you iIin the face area on

the 7th, do you recall?

A. I don®"t know.
Q. You mentioned setting rock
props. Where were those --- where

did you set rock props at, what

entry?

AL It was 1n the Number One

entry.

Q. Do you recall 1if that --- do
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you recall 1f any cleanup 1n the
number three or number four had been
performed? Any cleanup starting 1iIn
Number Three or Number Four entries?
A No, not that I recall.

Q.- Do you recall where you
started setting rock props up 1In the

Number One entry?

A We started out with timbers
and --- or square sets.

Q. Okay.

AL But --- and then they went ---

they went to the squares, that"s the

rock props, where that ---.

Q. Did you work on the day of the
16th?

A No .

Q. When was the last day vyou

worked prior to the 16th, do you

recall?

A I can"t remember when 1t was.
It was on a --- 1t was one of the two
days ---. They give us two days off.
It was on one of those two days. The

16th was on one of those two days
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that I took off.

Q. Okay.
A Because we --- they gave us
the option, we had --- we could take

two days off out of the four days.
There"s --- you know, we could take
two days before or two days after,
you know what I"m saying, of the four
days. And I took the two days --- 1
took the later --- or the most ---
you know, the first two days.

Q. Okay. So prior to the 16th
accident, what would the last day

that you was in there, the 16th, the

day of the accident, what day ---7?
A I don®"t know. I don™t
remember 1f that was --- you know,

out of those four days, which day 1t

was .
MR. WATKINS:
Okay. Let"s take about
a ten-minute break here.
We"ll let you catch your
breath and 1"m going to catch
mine.
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SHORT BREAK TAKEN

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. Anything come back to you over
the break, Torrey, that you"d like to
add on to before we get started?

A No, you can go ahead.

Q. All right. Just a --- jJust a
couple of questions, follow-up
questions. In the barrier block, you
had mined the barrier block and you
said the miner was iIn and you took

your buggy, shuttle car up to the

miner.

A Yeah.

Q. And the cab never went inby
the last row of bolts. Was the last

row of bolts warped 1n any way, SO
that you could see the ---7?

A. I can"t remember. I know they
had the unsupported top signs there,
you know, stop, unsupported top. But
I don"t --- 1 don"t remember 1f they

had them there at all times, you

know. I mean, I --- 1 didn"t pay
attention to that. I Just --- 1 knew
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I wasn®"t supposed to go past the last
row of bolts.

Q.- Does the company have a policy
of a certain way of marking the last

row of bolts or anything, that you-“re
aware of?

A. Not that I"m aware of, besides
that, you know, the unsupported top.

Q- Did they hang anything off of

them, a ribbon or anything off of the

last row of bolts or anything, a

reflector or ---7°
A . Not that I can remember.
Q.- Okay. You said that when you

started there, they had just finished

up the development section.

A Yeah, they were just fTinishing
it.
Q. Just finishing 1t up and you

was getting ready to start the pillar
section coming out.

A Right.

Q.- Did anyone talk to you about
what to expect as far as being a new

person in the section, what to look

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

83

for?
AL Everybody told me I was coming

on to the most interesting part of

the whole thing that 1 could have
came 1n.
Q.- Okay. Did they --- did

anybody describe the conditions to
you that you was going to encounter

or might encounter?

A. They said it was going to get
worse. They already said 1t was
going to get worse. The bounces, you

know, were going to get harder and
stuff like that. Because the fTirst
couple days there was a couple small,
you know, just little bounces. And
they saitd, you know, that®"s not
really anything, just wait for a

little while and 1t will get worse.

Q- Okay.
A And they were saying that
because when, 1 guess --- 1 don-"t

know what happened, but they pulled
them out this section back here, just

I guess north of the section we were
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in.
Q.- How long were you there before
you found your first bounce, do you
remember?

AL No .

Q- Do you remember what 1t
sounded like?

AL No .

BY ATTORNEY CASEY:

Q- Do you even know what 1t was,
Torrey, the first bounce?

A. Yeah, they told me.

Q.- So 1t was the people that you
were working with on your crew that
just said, hey, that"s not right,
something just happened here?

A Yeah. They didn"t say 1t
wasn®"t right or anything.

Q.- They said something just

happened here?

AL They just said that 1t was a
bounce.
Q.- How was that bounce 1in

comparison to the one that you talked

about that knocked you to your knees?
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A It was nothing. It was really
small compared to the one that
knocked me to --- that knocked me
down .

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. How much time was i1t between
those two bounces, from the time that
you heard that first one that wasn-"t
very much at all to the one that

knocked you down?

A. I don"t Kknow. I couldn®"t tell
you.
Q.- So the guys talked to you

about when you heard the first one,
that®"s nothing, that they®re going to

get worse?

A. Yeah.
Q. Okay. Did they?
A Yeah. Like 1 said, they

progressively got harder and more
frequent.

Q. Did they also progressively
get worse as far as the coal being
displaced off the ribs and stuff,

too?
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AL Yeah, 1t did. Il wish 1 could

tell you where all this happened at.

Q.- That"s okay. You®"re doing
fine.

A There was a place 1In the
barrier where --- when we were mining
in the barrier, every time 1 took my

shuttle car down to load up with

coal, ---

Q. Uh-huh (yes).

A --- 1t was bouncing pretty
hard on the fTace. It was right at

the face of the mine, you know, right
where the miner was cutting.

Q.- How many bounces would you say
you heard or encountered during a

shift, roughly, do you remember?

A . Il have no i1dea. Sometimes
none.
Q. Okay. On an average shift,

how many do you think you might hear?

A. Three or four.

Q. Three or fTour.

A. Towards the end when we were

cutting --- like I said, when 1 was
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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going down in my buggy, every time I
went to face, 1t was bouncing.

Q. Okay. When you first started
the pillar section, how many would

you hear?

AL Oh, I don"t know.

Q. I"m just trying to get a fTeel
for --- you said they i1ncrease as fTar
as ---.

A Yes.

Q. I"m jJust trying to get a

little bit feel for how ---.

AL Three or four would be on a
day where, you know, just like moving
belts or something, where there 1s no
cutting going on. When there was
cutting, you could hear bounces, you
know.

Q. Okay. But there be more
bounces on the day that they were
cutting?

A Yeah.

Q.- What would be the average
number on the days they were cutting

coal?
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A I don®"t know. I couldn™t tell
you. I couldn®"t hear a lot of “em,
you know. And some of them 1
wouldn"t even hear because 1 was 1In
my buggy and 1 wouldn®"t be able to
hear anything, so ---. IT I was at
the feeder, I wouldn®"t be able to
hear "em, you know, 1f 1 was riding

my buggy, the feeder was running. |
couldn®"t tell you how many.

Q.- Let"s think about i1t, I guess,
in terms of coal that®"s been moved or
displaced off the ribs. Out of those
three or four bounces that you heard
when you said they wasn®"t cutting
coal, how many of them would displace
coal off the ribs?

A . I don"t know. I wouldn™t see
--- you know ---.

Q.- You would just hear?

A . Yeah. A lot of the bounces
you wouldn®"t ever see, you"d just
hear. Unless 1 was at my buggy and
it was right 1n the face, then 1

could see 1t, you know.
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Q.- And as you came back, would
you say that the larger number of the
bounces then dislodge coal? You
might hear more of them, but as far
as severity goes, would they be
getting worse, the amount of coal
that was being moved?

A I don®"t know. I never ---.

I didn"t really see how much was

being displaced, because 1t was just

--- you know, I"m a miner, 1 was just
right there at the face. So you
couldn®"t really --- 1 wasn™"t seeing

exactly how much was there, you know?
It wasn"t right next to me where |1
could see.

Q. On the 6th, when you went back
in and you was helping with the fresh
ailr base and you were helping rebuild
the stoppings, did you hear any

bounces during that time frame?

A. It was still working, yeah.
Q. Okay.
A. You know what working 1s;

correct?
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Q- Well, yes.

A . You could still hear some
cracks and stuff going on back 1n
there, some bounces and stuff.

Q. Okay.

A And 1t was, again, where you
couldn®"t see them or anything, you
know .

Q.- Did see any coal being

displaced from those ---

AL No .

Q- --- from any of them?

AL No .

Q.- How often would you say that

was between bounces? How often would
you hear a bounce at that time?

A. I couldn®"t tell you.

Q. Okay. As you were pillaring
back, did they ever have an occasion
where they had to --- when they left
blocks or cuts that they intended to
get?

A Well, that®"s another thing. |
heard about 1t and everything else

but I never paid enough attention
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really to know where they were at

or ---.
Q.- What did you hear?
A They were leaving a fTew

pillars in because there was some

stuff happening and they figured they

should leave some pillars. But
that®"s about all 1 know along that
because 1 don"t --- 1 didn"t really

pay enough attention to 1t.

Q. Was there any talk or any
discussion or anyone talk to you
about leaving the pillars across from
where the sump area was at?

A IT I should leave "em?

Q.- Yes. Was there any talk about

leaving any of these pillars?

A I can"t remember. Like 1
saitd, 1 didn"t pay enough attention
to 1t. It really wasn"t, | guess,

any of my concern at that time, you

know.
Q. Okay.
A I was just working. I didn"t

know anything about 1t, really.
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Okay. Just one last time, on

the 5th, okay, the day before the

accident, ---

AL
Q-

Uh-huh (yes).

--- when you were 1In the

section, do you recall taking any

buggies from any of the lifts 1n the

barrier that day?

AL

I really can®"t remember what

we were doing the day before. I

can®"t

AL

--. No . I couldn"t tell you.
ATTORNEY CASEY:

Torrey, when you guys
were pillaring out and the
bumps starting getting more
severe and 1n greater
frequency, did you guys, as
your crew, did you talk about
that?

A little bit, yeah.

ATTORNEY CASEY:

Did anybody express any
concerns about that happening?

Not really. They knew 1t was

going to be the same --- from what
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they said, they knew 1t was going to

be the same because of how they got
pulled out of this area, the people
that were In that area, you know,
when they were mining that out. They
knew 1t was going to get worse
because of what happened 1n there.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. By 1in there, who are you
referring to when you was talking

about Iin there?

A Up In here (indicating).

Q.- Okay. That would be ---.

AL I don"t see where 1t 1s on
here, but I guess they started
pillaring out. And I guess --- you
know, 1t was probably here, 1 guess.
Q.- Okay. That would be the north

mains you was referring to?

AL Yeah. I guess 1t would have
been here. I don®"t know. Up In this
area somewhere they were pillaring
and they got pulled out of 1t because
it was getting too bad, 1 guess.

BY ATTORNEY CASEY:
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Q. So they thought that this
would be something to expect 1In the
west barrier as well then?

A Or just 1n this whole --- 1In

this pillar section.

Q- In the pillar section?
A. Yeah.
Q.- So did you guys talk about

that during any of your safety

meetings or ---7?

A I don®"t know. The miner
operator --- well, 1t kind of
switched. There was --- Cody Ordener

was riding the miner for a little
while, but most of the time that |
was running buggy, Charles Whitten,
was running the miner, and he --- 1
guess one day he walked back and was
checking out the whole mine, just
looking at what was going on. And 1
guess he was a little bit concerned
about the bounce --- or I don"t know

if 1t was the bounces or what was

going on. He was seeing --- he said
it was --- he saw that i1t was taken
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AL I don™"t.
Q.- --- 1f he shared his concerns
with anybody?
AL I don™"t.
Q. Did you understand what he
meant by taking weight?
A . It could have been a lot of
different things. It could have been
the bolts. You could see the bolts
taking weight, but I never saw any
bolts taking weight back here because
that"s something 1 would look for,
you know, being concerned because |
heard about that. You know, when
your pillar and you look --- you
know, you want to make sure your
bolts above you aren"t, you know
taking weight, ---
Q. Uh-huh (yes).
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A --- because they shouldn®t
because you®"re MRSs should take all
that and then you wouldn®"t have

any ---.

BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. Was that In the south barrier?
You"re talking about when Charles
made his examination, that was in the

south barrier; 1s that correct?

A It was jJust iIn the section.
Q. Okay.
A Just in the --- 1 don*"t know

where at, what entry or anything.
Q. Okay.
AL He jJust said that he could see

it taking weight back to there.

Q. Okay.
AL I mean, you know, he could see
it taking --- 1f --- 1t was taking

bad weight, you know, i1t was starting
to come down a little bit. You could

see the stoppings, you know, bow or

something, but 1 don"t know what he

was seeing. I Just figured that

would probably be something 1 should
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tell you. I Just remembered about
it.

ATTORNEY CASEY:

Do you remember any
other miner up there or any
other employee down there 1in
the crew noticing anything
unusual or odd and commenting
about 1t?

AL Well, like I said about that,
this pillar how --- that pillar like
that, was separated from the ceiling,
you know, maybe that wasn®"t good.

ATTORNEY CASEY:

Okay .
BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. Did you guys have any
discussions about that?

A Yeah. There was someone, |
don"t know who, but there was
somebody came down In mine. We
didn"t --- we saw that and we didn-"t
start production, you know, we didn-"t
start mining that day. Somebody came

in the mine and checked 1t out before
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we did anything. And 1 believe that

was the time when they decided to

leave the pillars.

Q- Leave which pillars?
A I don®"t recall which ones they
were --- back, 1n the back. I don™t

know which ones they left.

ATTORNEY CASEY:

They decided to leave
the pillar that was affected,

though, that had a crack 1n

it?
A Yeah.
ATTORNEY CASEY:
And the pillars around
it?
A Yeah.

ATTORNEY CASEY:

Okay .
BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. Who provided your past
training on the buggy? Who showed
you how to operate the buggy?

A Quite a few people from a

bunch of different things, you know.
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Brian Allen showed me a lot of stuff
on 1t, but everybody kind of helped
me out on i1t, you know.

Q. Did Brian ever talk to you
about what to expect when you were

pillaring out of there?

AL No .
Q. You"ve only been there three
months. Had you ever participated 1in

any of the evacuation drills or
anything for the section?

A No . I hadn"t been there --- 1
wasn®"t 1In this mine for three months.
Because from --- 1 think 1t hasn™t
even quite been exactly three months
since 1 started. I know that because

I haven®™t gotten my insurance papers

yet.
Q.- When did you start, do you
recall?

AL I don"t know the date 1
started.

BY ATTORNEY CASEY:

Q.- Would 1t have been 1n July,

though, Torrey?
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A I don®"t know. I really don~"t.

Q- Okay. What, three months ---
today you don"t have your iInsurance

papers; correct?

AL No .

Q. Okay. So 1t"s not even been

three months as of today?

A. No .
Q.- Okay. So we"re September 24th
today. So you go back August 24th,

July 24th?

AL I don"t know. I couldn™t tell
you.

Q. Okay.

A It"s jJust something 1 didn-"t

pay attention to.

Q.- So when did you actually start
in the mine then? You said you
didn"t start down working 1n the mine
right away. What were you doing
initially?

A No . I did start working 1in

the mine right away.

Q. Okay.
A. I Just did --- we weren"t ---
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I wasn®"t running the buggy right

away .
Q. Gotcha.
A I worked on another crew, just

helping out with ventilation and
stuff like that for a little while.

ATTORNEY CASEY:

Okay .
BY MR. WATKINS:

Q. Torrey, have you given a
written statement or i1interview to any
management official or outside
organization before this i1nterview
regarding the accident? Have you
talked to anyone or given a written
statement to anyone before this
interview?

ATTORNEY MEANS:

With regard to talking
to anyone, he®"s not talking
about any attorney/client
discussions.

A Uh-uh (no).
BY MR. WATKINS:

Q.- Okay. Has anyone offered you
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anything or made you any promise to
you 1n exchange for you to appear or

not to appear here today?

AL No .

Q.- Do you have anything you-©d
like to add or clarify before ---7
AL No . I pretty much said

everything I can remember.

MR. WATKINS:

We do appreciate that.
ATTORNEY CASEY:

Tim (sic), | guess,
just for the record, I™m
curious about when you said
attorney/client privilege,
what attorney/client privilege
are you referring to 1f you-"re
not representing him directly?

ATTORNEY MEANS:

I"m talking about the
company®s attorney/client
privilege.

ATTORNEY CASEY:

Okay. And so, Torrey,

have you discussed anything or
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given an interview oOr
statement to any individual
besides MSNA before today?
Because, again, 1 don*"t
believe the attorney/client
privilege applies to your
conversations with him, Tom.
So my question i1s, Torrey,
have you discussed this case
with anybody before today?
ATTORNEY MEANS:

Well, 1t would not
apply to any discussions you
had with the company
attorneys. Other than that,

feel free to answer, you

should answer. Feel free to
answer. You don®"t have to
answer .

ATTORNEY CASEY:

Well, we can certainly
discuss this off the record
later, but I do believe that
the question would apply to

conversations with you because
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you do not represent hinm
directly, Tom.
ATTORNEY MEANS:

Well, 1t"s a legal
issue we have to talk about.

ATTORNEY CASEY:

Well, 1t"s a little bit
more than a legal 1ssue
because we"re going to address
this with witnesses to come.
So we do need to talk about
that.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

We can talk about 1t.

ATTORNEY CASEY:

Okay.
MR. WATKINS:

And Torrey, on behalf
of MSHA, I want to thank you
for appearing and answering
questions today. Your
cooperation 1Is very iImportant
to the 1nvestigation as we
work to determine the cause of

the accident.
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We ask that you not

discuss your testimony with
any person who may have
already been interviewed or
may be 1nterviewed In the
future. This will ensure that
we obtain everyone-®s
independent recollection of
events surrounding the
accident.

After questioning other
witnesses, we may call you if
we have any fTollow-up
questions that we feel we need
to ask of you. IfT at any time
you have additional
information regarding the
accident that you would like
to provide to us, please
contact us at the information
on the card I previously gave
to you.

Okay.
MR. WATKINS:

The Mine Act provides
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certain protection to miners
who provide information to
MSHA and as a result are
treated adversely. IT at any
time you believe that you have
been treated unfairly because
of your cooperation in this
investigation, you should
immediately notify MSHA.

IT you wish, you may
now go back over any answers
that you have given during the
interview and you may also
make any statement that you
would litke to make at this
time. Anything you would like

to add?

A . I"m good.

MR. WATKINS:

Okay. Again, 1°d like
to thank you for appearing
here today.

*x * * @ * X X X *

STATEMENT CONCLUDED AT 12:07 P.M.

*x * * @ * X X X *
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